
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Communities and Local 
Services Scrutiny 

Committee Agenda 
 
 10.00 am Thursday, 22 

April 2021 
Microsoft Teams 

 
 
 

  
 

In accordance with Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) 
(Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and 
Wales) Regulations 2020, this meeting will be held on a virtual basis. Members of 

the Public can view a live stream of the meeting at:  
https://www.darlington.gov.uk/livemeetings 

        Members of the public wanting to raise issues/make representations at the 
meeting can do so by emailing hannah.fay@darlington.gov.uk 24 hours before 

the meeting begin  

 
1.   Introductions/Attendance at Meeting  

 
2.   Declarations of Interest  

 
3.   To approve the Minutes of the meeting of this Scrutiny held on 25 February 2021 

(Pages 3 - 8) 
 

4.   Indoor and Outdoor Markets –  
Verbal update by Managing Director, Market Asset Management 
 (Pages 9 - 18) 
 

5.   Darlington Libraries –  
Presentation by Library Manager 
 (Pages 19 - 44) 
 

6.   Darlington Hippodrome –  
Presentation by Head of Culture 
 (Pages 45 - 62) 
 

7.   Work Programme –  
Report of Managing Director 
 (Pages 63 - 82) 

Public Document Pack

https://www.darlington.gov.uk/livemeetings
mailto:hannah.fay@darlington.gov.uk


 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 
8.   SUPPLEMENTARY ITEM(S) (if any) which in the opinion of the Chair of this 

Committee are of an urgent nature and can be discussed at the meeting.  
 

9.   Questions  
 
 
 

     
 

Luke Swinhoe 
Assistant Director Law and Governance 

 
Wednesday, 14 April 2021 
 
Town Hall  
Darlington. 
 
 
Membership 
Councillors Renton, Mrs Culley, Allen, Bartch, Cossins, Donoghue, Durham, 
Haszeldine, McCollom, Tait and Wallis 
 

If you need this information in a different language or format or you have any other 
queries on this agenda please contact Hannah Fay, Democratic Officer, Resources 
Group, during normal office hours 8.30 a.m. to 4.45 p.m. Mondays to Thursdays and 
8.30 a.m. to 4.15 p.m. Fridays email: hannah.fay@darlington.gov.uk or telephone  
01325 405801 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
-1- 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

COMMUNITIES AND LOCAL SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
Thursday, 25 February 2021 

 
PRESENT – Councillors Renton (Chair), Mrs Culley, Allen, Bartch, Cossins, Donoghue, 
Durham, Haszeldine, McCollom, Tait and Wallis 
 
APOLOGIES –  
 
ABSENT –  
 
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE – Councillors Dulston, Keir and Chris Knox (Durham 
Constabulary) 
 
OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE – Ian Thompson (Assistant Director Community 
Services), Dave Winstanley (Assistant Director Transport and Capital Projects), 
Brian Graham (Head of Environmental Services), Graham Hall (Head of Community 
Safety), Sue Dobson (Sustainable Transport Manager), Kay Gamble (Transport Policy 
Officer), Silke Oldridge (Marketing and Communications Officer) and Hannah Fay 
(Democratic Officer) 
 
 

CLS30 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 There were no declarations of interest reported at the meeting. 
 

CLS31 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THIS SCRUTINY HELD ON 
10 DECEMBER 2020 
 

 Submitted – The Minutes (previously circulated) of the meeting of this Scrutiny 
Committee held on 10 December 2020. 
 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting of this Scrutiny Committee held on 10 
December be approved as a correct record. 
 

CLS32 COMMUNITY SAFETY PERFORMANCE 2020/21 
 

  The Head of Community Safety gave a PowerPoint presentation (previously 
circulated) updating Members on the Community Safety Performance 2020/21. 
 
The Cabinet Member with the Stronger Communities Portfolio introduced the 
presentation and in doing highlighted the strong partnership working in Darlington; 
that positive results had been seen over the last twelve months as a result of the work 
of the Community Safety Team; and that community safety was a priority area for 
continued investment. 
 
Reference was made to the Council’s vision and Council Plan priorities 2020-2023; 
the Stronger Communities Portfolio vision and priorities 2020-2023; and the service 
objectives were outlined. 
 
Members were advised of the role of the Community Safety team during the COVID-
19 pandemic; and details were provided of the key headlines and figures for the 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 

 

 
-2- 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Community Safety service areas.  
 
In relation to civic enforcement, Members were advised that the Council had 
successfully completed the re-accreditation process for Purple Flag status and 
Darlington was identified as a national area of best practice; the Council along with 
Police and partner organisations continued to meet during the during pandemic to 
provide signposting for vulnerable people to various pathways for relevant support; 
and as a result of the work around begging and homelessness, the number of people 
on the streets had reduced from 20 people to five in a two year period.  
 
Members were informed of the progress in relation to the Action Plan that had been 
developed as part of the Back Lanes Project, with 28 of the 48 actions completed; 
that enforcement officers were key in identifying areas of concern and reporting to 
street scene for swift action; and that a working group had been established to 
identify a number of actions to address dog fouling and to promote a safer and 
cleaner environment. 
 
In relation to CCTV it was reported that the six deployable cameras in the town had 
resulted in a noticeable reduction in crime in their vicinity; that four additional CCTV 
units would be placed in Northgate and North Road following receipt of Home Office 
Funding; and a review of CCTV provision had commenced. 
 
Members were advised of the key headlines in respect to Licensing; Trading 
Standards; and in relation to Private Sector Housing Members were informed of 
government funding received to introduce Warmer Homes 4 Programme; that £59k 
had been secured to undertake a Housing Stock Condition Survey; and funding had 
been secured to convert empty homes in the Northgate ward with eight units 
identified. 
 
It was reported that a key focus area for Community Resilience and Engagement was 
CONTEST; in light of the transfer of statutory responsibilities from the Police to Local 
Authorities improved training would be provided to Members; and in relation to the 
Safer Streets Initiative, 32 properties in the Northgate and North Road wards had 
been target hardened, with 48 properties part completed.   
 
Details were provided of the crime and disorder figures for Darlington and the Town 
Centre. Between April to January 2021 all crime had decreased by 18 per cent in 
Darlington when compared to the same period in the previous year which equated to 
reduction of 1911 incidents; incidents were down 10 per cent, whilst antisocial 
behaviour had increased by 1 per cent; and for Darlington Town Centre all crime had 
reduced. 
 
The Chief Inspector outlined the values and visions of Durham Constabulary; made 
reference to strong partnership working in Darlington; informed Members of the spike 
in dwelling burglaries seen at the beginning of the pandemic and detailed the actions 
taken to address this, resulting in a projected 12 per cent decrease when compared 
to the previous year. Details were also provided of police operations in place to 
respond to crime, antisocial behaviour, brothels and off-road motorcycles; and it was 
reported that 240 fixed penalty notices were issued in Darlington for breaches of 
covid restrictions.  
 

Page 4



 

 

 
-3- 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Following questions in relation to fly tipping in back lanes and dog fouling, Members 
were advised that various preventative measures were in place to deliver on the Back 
Lanes Project Action Plan; a number of streets had been issued with Section 46 legal 
notices; additional dog waste bins had been introduced; and any reported incidents of 
dog fouling were investigated. Members requested figures for dog fouling 
prosecutions in Darlington.  
 
Discussion ensued regarding reporting of incidents by residents; residents may be 
reluctant to report any issues via 101 due to the call queues, perceived lack of 
response to reports and unclear online reporting mechanism. The Chief Inspector 
advised Members that control room staffing levels had been affected by the 
pandemic; assured Members that every 101 call was logged; and Police respond as 
quickly as possible to reported incidents where resources allow. Members and 
residents were encouraged to engage with Neighbourhood police teams; were 
assured that PCSO’s had been tasked to engage regularly with their Ward 
Councillors; and PCSO’s would continue to engage with young people through school 
visits and youth projects when restrictions allow. 
 
Discussion ensued on drones, of which there were two trained officers in place to 
operate Darlington’s drone; the increase in dwelling burglaries in Darlington; and 
following a question in relation to empty properties, Members were assured that the 
Housing Stock Condition Survey would help to identify empty homes. 
 
Following a question, Members were advised that there had been 19 reported dog 
thefts across County Durham and Darlington in the last year, with 8 of those in 
Darlington; that this was a pandemic crime resulting from an increase in demand and 
price of dogs; and details were provided of the actions in place to address dog theft in 
the town. 
 
RESOLVED – (a) That the thanks of this Scrutiny Committee be extended to the 
Head of Community Safety for his informative and interesting presentation. 
 
(b) That the Community Safety Performance 2020/21 presentation be shared with all 
Members.  
 
(c) That Members be provided with figures for dog fouling prosecutions in Darlington. 
 
(d) That Members be provided with figures for empty properties in Darlington 
 

CLS33 MANAGEMENT OF GRASS VERGES 
 

 The Director of Economic Growth and Neighbourhood Services submitted a report 
(previously circulated) outlining the current position adopted by the Council in relation 
to the management of grass verges and to agree a process of reviewing the current 
arrangements. 
 
The submitted report stated that verge parking was a common issue across the 
Borough that was increasingly causing problems; and that the Council receives 
complaints regarding the current approach to grass verge damage. 
 
It was reported that the Council had a duty to ensure the highways were kept in a 

Page 5



 

 

 
-4- 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

safe condition; verges form part of the Highway and were subject to legislation and 
regulation; and the sources of the problem and scenarios where grass verge parking 
created issues were outlined. 
 
The report outlined previous approaches taken by the Council to alleviate the issues 
associated with verge parking; there was previously a relatively small budget for 
verge conversions and other type of physical works however this budget was no 
longer available. The Council continued to regularly inspect and respond to reports of 
damage and would only consider physical measures to prevent parking where the 
parking was causing a serious road safety concern in accordance with the Councils 
statutory duty. 
 
Details were provided of approaches taken by other local authorities to manager 
verges; and the solutions that were available to the Council to either deter or prevent 
parking or options to accommodate parking. 
 
Members questioned whether greater responsibility could be given to residents to 
manage grass verges; and requested that damage by utility companies and council 
owned vehicles be considered as part of the review of current arrangements. The 
Assistant Director Transport and Capital Projects advised that the Task and Finish 
Group would investigate all possible options to address the management of grass 
verges and that the scope of the review could be widened based on Members 
experiences. 
 
RESOLVED – (a) That a Task and Finish Group be arranged to assist development 
of a new operational policy in relation to the management of grass verges. 
 
(b) That Members agree the format of the review based on the proposed format as 
outlined in paragraph 73 of the submitted report. 
 
(c) That Members agree the outcomes expected from the review based on the 
proposal as outlined in paragraph 74 of the submitted report. 
 

CLS34 SCHOOL STREETS INITIATIVE REVIEW GROUP 
 

 The Chair of the School Streets Initiative Review Group submitted a report (previously 
circulated) presenting the outcomes and findings of the review group 
 
The submitted report outlined the background to the establishment of the Review 
Group to review the initial findings of a commission considering the potential for 
School Street Initiative and it was reported that the Review Group had met on two 
occasions and a range of issues had been discussed and considered. 
 
A Member highlighted the importance of clear communication with the Health and 
Police colleagues to ensure that these services were not impacted by the initiative.  
 
RESOLVED – (a) That the Communities and Local Services agree that the following 
recommendations be forwarded to Cabinet for consideration :- 
 

i. that the School Streets Initiative should be progressed to the next phase; 
and  

Page 6



 

 

 
-5- 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

ii. that the prioritisation of the top three schools for phase three be 
conducted using the ‘Essential’, Traffic Impacts’ criteria and ‘Supporting 
Criteria’;  

 
(b) that a Quad of Aims be submitted to this Scrutiny Committee to establish a 

Task and Finish Review group to review additional measures available to 
address issues associated with traffic problems around schools. 

 
CLS35 LOCAL TRANSPORT PLAN 

 
 The Director of Economic Growth and Neighbourhood Services submitted a report 

(previously circulated) requesting Members give consideration to the draft Cabinet 
report (also previously circulated) prior to its consideration by Cabinet on 3 March 
2021. 
 
The submitted report provided Members with an annual update on highways and 
transport from a regional and local perspective; outlined delivery, performance and 
public satisfaction in 2020/21 and provided an update on the Tees Valley Strategic 
Transport Plan and the Darlington Transport Plan. 
 
It was reported that the Strategic Transport Plan was adopted as the Local Transport 
Plan for the Tees Valley in January 2020; the Plan would help direct the investment of 
£256.7M into transport projects across the Tees Valley in the period of 2019-2029; 
and details were provided of the programmes already being progressed or delivered. 
 
Following questions by Members it was confirmed that the Tees Valley Bus 
Partnership continued to be developed and that the Tees Valley Combined Authority 
(TVCA) continued to pay the concessionary bus fares at a pre-COVID-19 level to 
ensure services would still in place post COVID-19; that the decline in public 
satisfaction identified by the National Highways and Transportation Survey may be 
related to COVID-19 and that this would be closely monitored over the next year; and 
a number of schemes had been identified to address the key areas identified by the 
survey. 
 
Details were provided of the capital and revenue investments in transport in 
Darlington 2020/21; and the TVCA and Darlington Borough Council funded 
programmes for 2021/22 were outlined. Following a question, Members were advised 
that a number of bids were being submitted to the Government; that Darlington had 
received a significant investment of £1.274M into the pothole fund; and Darlington 
would be submitting bids into the TVCA for further funding.  
 
Members were concerned to note the suspension of both pedestrian and Bikeability 
cycle training programmes. The Assistant Director Transport and Capital Projects 
confirmed that sustainable travel was a priority; that these programmes had been 
suspended due to COVID-19 risk assessments and  
would be re-introduced as soon as restrictions allowed; and discussions were 
underway with TVCA to secure funding to enable these programmes to continue. 
 
Particular reference was made to the Darlington Transport Plan; a framework for the 
basis of consultation on the plan was approved by Cabinet in March 2020; progress 
had been delayed to due Covid-19 however the resources were now in place to 

Page 7



 

 

 
-6- 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

progress the Plan. A PowerPoint presentation given by the Transport Planning 
Manager accompanied the submitted report, detailing the vision of the Darlington 
Transport Plan and the four key aims, which had been reviewed and updated, with a 
focus on supporting economic growth through the delivery of sustainable transport 
options and identifying key traffic pinch points on the highway network. Members 
were pleased to note the inclusion of safety as a specific aim following feedback from 
the National Highways and Transportation Survey. 
 
Following a request from this Scrutiny Committee in February 2020 for a specific 
transport plan for the town centre, Members welcomed the framework for the Town 
Centre Transport plan, noting the principles identified for the Plan and their links to 
Darlington’s Town Centre Strategy. 
 
Particular discussion ensued in respect of electric vehicle charging points. Reference 
was made by Members to the benefits and limitations associated with electric 
vehicles; and Members were informed that a procurement process would be 
undertaken to identify sites for electric charging points in Darlington, with £2M funding 
from the TVCA to appoint a provider to supply and manage the infrastructure.   
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

CLS36 WORK PROGRAMME 
 

 The Managing Director submitted a report (previously circulated) requesting that 
consideration be given to this Scrutiny Committee’s work programme for the 
remainder of the Municipal Year 2020/21. 
 
Members were advised that the Tees Valley Combined Authority Transport Strategy 
which was scheduled for the meeting this Scrutiny Committee on 22 April 2021 had 
been postponed to the meeting of this Scrutiny Committee on 17 June 2021. 
 
Members were also informed that the update on the Drug and Alcohol Service 
scheduled for the Health and Housing Scrutiny Committee on 3 March 2021 had 
been postponed to the meeting of the Health and Housing Scrutiny Committee on 14 
April; and that an invite would be extended to Members of this Scrutiny Committee. 
 
Following a request at the previous meeting, members were informed that to increase 
the number of bins in Darlington by 10 per cent, which equated to 112 bins, would 
cost £25K with annual service costs of £15K. 
 
RESOLVED – That the current status of the work programme be noted. 
 

Page 8



The Exciting Future of 
Darlington Market
By Market Asset Management (Darlington) Ltd

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 4



Darlington: A Programme of 
Events and Activity 

P
age 10



Darlington: A Programme of 
Events and Activity 

P
age 11



Darlington: A Programme of 
Events and Activity 

P
age 12



Redevelopment: Construction 
work is well underway  

P
age 13



Darlington Market:
Aerial Views

P
age 14



Artist’s Impression:
Daytime

P
age 15



Artist’s Impression:
Evening

P
age 16



Examples: 
Market Halls 

P
age 17



International:  
Street Food Selection 

P
age 18



Darlington Libraries
Suzy Hill

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 5



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Public libraries are governed by legislation ensuring that all members of
society have free access to library materials. The first Public Libraries act
was passed in 1850 and more recently the Public Libraries and Museums
act of 1964 became law.

It states that it shall be the duty of every library authority to provide “a
comprehensive and efficient library service for all persons desiring to
make use thereof.”

Statutory duties are set out in the act and include:

• The provision of books and other materials needed to achieve 
the provision of a comprehensive and efficient service

• Ensuring the means are in place to allow borrowing of or 
reference use of materials to meet users’ requirements

• Encouraging users to make full use of the service and providing 
advice, bibliographic and other information to assist in this

P
age 20



More than just books

P
age 21



Darlington Library
Lending Library

Reference Library

e-Library

Centre for Local Studies

Crown Street Art Gallery

Cockerton Library 
Lending and Information

Computer Use

P
age 22



P
age 23



Darlington Library Refurbishment 

Restoring the 135 year old library with a 
refurbishment sympathetic to the 
history and heritage of the building. 
Works to include:

Cockerton Library Improvements

The 50 year old library will benefit from:

Roof restored

Mechanical and Electrical installations replaced

Structural repairs

New Toilets and Family Change

Internal decoration

External lighting

New windows 

Internal decoration

P
age 24



Information and 
Digital Offer

Ensure residents have 
access to quality 

information and digital 
services, to learn new 
skills and to feel safe 

online.

* Newspaper issues in April 2021 have been estimated due to the timing of this presentation

P
age 25



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

P
age 26



P
age 27



P
age 28



“This is a way of escaping from all the negative news over the 
past year. The home delivery service is brilliant –the books have 
helped to pass the time especially in the long winter months in 

lockdown”

“The Home delivery service is something to look forward to. It feels 
like Christmas. I really enjoy the anticipation of going through the 

new books and seeing what you have chosen for me. Also, I 
have found new writers, ones I would not have tried otherwise.”

“First class service, even in ice and snow!
Thank you to the staff and volunteers for providing a wonderful 

service.”

“Contact with other people is important, especially in these 
difficult times. During lockdown, the service has been a life saver 
to me, especially being an avid reader throughout my adult life.”

“Thank you to everyone involved at Darlington Library. Year in, 
year out you keep us supplied with great books, and great 

service. Then, when lockdown happens, you have been 
AMAZING. Thank you so much. 

P
age 29



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

P
age 30



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Christmas B.A.G. 
Books to borrow. Activities, crafts and gifts to keep.

Wellbeing Bag
Books for adult & child, bath bomb with toy, activity and information

P
age 31



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

P
age 32



P
age 33



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

P
age 34



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Performance Indicators
Previous

• Number of physical visits to the 
Library

• Number of book loans

• Number of ICT sessions at the library

• Number of users of Local Studies

• Number of library members who 
have borrowed a book in the last 
year

• Reservations - where an item is reserved from 

stock or from another library and is supplied within 
7 days, shown as a %

Recommendation

• Items Borrowed (This would include physical stock, digital books/audio/magazines)

P
age 35



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

P
age 36



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Performance Indicators
Previous

• Number of physical visits to the 
Library

• Number of book loans

• Number of ICT sessions at the library

• Number of users of Local Studies

• Number of library members who 
have borrowed a book in the last 
year

• Reservations - where an item is reserved from 

stock or from another library and is supplied within 
7 days, shown as a %

Recommendation

• Items Borrowed (This would include physical stock, digital books/audio/magazines)

• Physical Stock borrowed from Darlington Library 

• Physical Stock borrowed from Cockerton Library

• Number of physical visits to Darlington

• Number of physical visits to Cockerton

• Number of group engagements (Events/activities/groups – provided within 

libraries, at external venues and online)

• Number of group engagements at Darlington Library 

• Number of group engagements at Cockerton Library 

P
age 37



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Around 1300 

people attended 

Darlington BookFest  

During 2019/20 there were 177,110 visitors to Darlington Library

16,088 children and 11,271 adults attended an 

event or activity

Around 1550 people attended our outdoor event; 

Bookstart in the Park

P
age 38



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Performance Indicators
Previous

• Number of physical visits to the 
Library

• Number of book loans

• Number of ICT sessions at the library

• Number of users of Local Studies

• Number of library members who 
have borrowed a book in the last 
year

• Reservations - where an item is reserved from 

stock or from another library and is supplied within 
7 days, shown as a %

Recommendation

• Items Borrowed (This would include physical stock, digital books/audio/magazines)

• Physical Stock borrowed from Darlington Library 

• Physical Stock borrowed from Cockerton Library

• Number of physical visits to Darlington

• Number of physical visits to Cockerton

• Number of group engagements (Events/activities/groups – provided within 

libraries, at external venues and online)

• Number of group engagements at Darlington Library 

• Number of group engagements at Cockerton Library 

• Number of educational interactions (Visits to or from 

nurseries/schools/colleges/specific home school groups)

• Number of enquires directed to the Centre for Local Studies (To 

include enquiries in person and via telephone, post, email and social media.)

• Reservations - where an item is reserved from stock or from another library and is 

supplied within 7 days, shown as a %

P
age 39



In November 2020 ¼ of 
adults reported that they 

were suffering from 
loneliness

Research from YouGov Plc

P
age 40



Those who are excluded digitally are 

also far more likely to be 

disadvantaged according to many 

other social and economic measures. 

The digital divide exacerbates 

inequality.
Carnegie UK Trust

P
age 41



P
age 42



Inspire Reading

Experiences and interactions Book sharing

Improve lives

Engage new audiences Shhh

Activity

Events

Fun Interactions

Meaningful conversations

Welcome

Bright

LightGroups

Study

Borrow

Read

BooksDarlington Libraries

P
age 43



Questions

P
age 44



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 6



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

The Need for Change

P
age 46



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Key Changes

P
age 47



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Our case for support

Grade II listed landmark building built in 1907

Most complete example of work of architects 

Owen & Ward

Last survivor of Rino Pepi’s theatrical empire in 

the North-East

Close connection with Bank Top Station and 

Darlington’s rail heritage

Well-respected in the theatre sector

At the heart of Darlington’s cultural offer & sense 

of community

P
age 48



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

P
age 49



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

P
age 50



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

The Restored Darlington Hippodrome

P
age 51



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Auditorium

P
age 52



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Putting Darlington on the map

P
age 53



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Bars, Meetings & Conferencing

P
age 54



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

P
age 55



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Creative Learning & Engagement

P
age 56



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

P
age 57



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

The Hullabaloo Theatre

P
age 58



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Impacts of Covid-19
The Virtual Hipp

P
age 59



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Impacts of Covid-19

P
age 60



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

2021 and Beyond

P
age 61



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

COMMUNITIES AND LOCAL SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
22 APRIL 2021 

 
 

 
 

WORK PROGRAMME 
 

 
SUMMARY REPORT 

 
Purpose of the Report 
 
1. To consider the work programme items scheduled to be considered by this Scrutiny 

Committee during the 2020/21 Municipal Year and to consider any additional areas 
which Members would like to suggest should be added to the previously approved 
work programme. 
 

Summary  
 
2. Members are requested to consider the attached draft work programme (Appendix 

1) for the remainder of the 2020/21 Municipal Year which has been prepared based 
on Officers recommendations and recommendations previously agreed by this 
Scrutiny Committee. 
 

3. Any additional areas of work which Members wish to add to the agreed work 
programme will require the completion of a quad of aims in accordance with the 
previously approved procedure (Appendix 2). 
 

Recommendation 
 
4. It is recommended that Members note the current status of the Work Programme 

and consider any additional areas of work they would like to include. 
 
5. Members’ views are requested. 
 
 
 

Paul Wildsmith 
Managing Director 

 

Background Papers 
 
 
No background papers were used in the preparation of this report. 
 
Author : Hannah Fay 

 
 

 
  

Page 63

Agenda Item 7



 

 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 
 
 
 
 

S17 Crime and Disorder This report has no implications for Crime and 
Disorder 

Health and Well Being This report has no direct implications to the 
Health and Well Being of residents of 
Darlington. 

Carbon Impact and Climate 
Change 

There are no issues which this report needs to 
address.  

Diversity There are no issues relating to diversity which 
this report needs to address 

Wards Affected The impact of the report on any individual Ward 
is considered to be minimal. 

Groups Affected The impact of the report on any individual Group 
is considered to be minimal. 

Budget and Policy Framework  This report does not represent a change to the 
budget and policy framework. 

Key Decision This is not a key decision. 

Urgent Decision This is not an urgent decision 

One Darlington: Perfectly 
Placed 

The report contributes to the Sustainable 
Community Strategy in a number of ways 
through the involvement of Members in 
contributing to the delivery of the eight 
outcomes. 

Efficiency The Work Programmes are integral to 
scrutinising and monitoring services efficiently 
(and effectively), however this report does not 
identify specific efficiency savings. 

Impact on Looked After 
Children and Care Leavers 

This report has no impact on Looked After 
Children or Care Leavers. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 64



 

 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

MAIN REPORT 
 
Information and Analysis 
 
6. The format of the proposed work programme has been reviewed to enable Members 

of this Scrutiny Committee to provide a rigorous and informed challenge to the areas 
for discussion.  

 
7. Each topic has been reviewed to link it to the outcomes and the conditions in the 

Sustainable Community Strategy – One Darlington Perfectly Placed:- 
 
  
SCS Outcomes 
 

Three Conditions 
 

a) Children with the best start in life 
 

a) Build Strong Communities 

b) More businesses more jobs 
 

b) Grow the Economy 

c) A safe and caring community 
 

c) Spend every pound wisely 

d) More people caring for our 
environment 
 

  

e) More people active and involved 
 

  

f) More people healthy and independent 
 

  

g) A place designed to thrive 
 

  

8. In addition, each topic links to performance indicators from the Performance 
Management Framework (PMF) to provide robust and accurate data for Members to 
use when considering topics and the work they wish to undertake.  There are some 
topics where appropriate PMF indicators have not yet been identified however; these 
can be added as the work programme for each topic is developed. 

 
Forward Plan and Additional Items 
 
9. Once the Work Programme has been agreed by this Scrutiny Committee, any 

Member seeking to add a new item to the work programme will need to complete a 
quad of aims.   
 

10. A copy of the Forward Plan has been attached at Appendix 3 for information. 
 

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



 
This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 APPENDIX 1 
 

COMMUNITIES AND LOCAL SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME  
 
 

Topic 

 
Timescale 

 
Lead Officer/ 
Organisation 
Involved 

SCS Outcome 
Darlington 
Conditions 

Link to 
Performance 
Management 
Framework 
(metrics) 

Scrutiny’s Role 

Library Services 
To include digital offer 

22 April 2021 Ian Thompson More people 
active and 
involved 
 
A place designed 
to thrive 

Spend every 
pound wisely 

CUL 065 
CUL 066 
CUL 067 

To scrutinise and 
undertake any further work 
if necessary. 

Hippodrome 
 

22 April 2021 Ian Thompson More people 
active and 
involved 
 
A place designed 
to thrive 

Spend every 
pound wisely 

 To scrutinise and 
undertake any further work 
if necessary. 

Indoor /Outdoor 
Market 

22 April 2021 
 
 

MAM/Mark 
Ladyman 

A safe and caring 
community  
 
More businesses, 
more jobs 
 
A place designed 
to thrive 
 

Spend every 
pound wisely 
 

 To update Scrutiny on the 
development of the 
Indoor/Outdoor Market. 

Tees Valley 
Combined Authority 
Transport Strategy 
(to include Bus 
Services in the Tees 
Valley) 

17 June 2021 
 

Dave 
Winstanley/ 
Tom Bryant 
TVCA 

A place designed 
to thrive 
 
 

Grow the 
economy 
 
 

 To contribute to and 
influence the Strategy to 
ensure the best outcomes 
for residents. 

P
age 67



 

2 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Topic 

 
Timescale 

 
Lead Officer/ 
Organisation 
Involved 

SCS Outcome 
Darlington 
Conditions 

Link to 
Performance 
Management 
Framework 
(metrics) 

Scrutiny’s Role 

CCTV  To be agreed Ian Thompson/ 
Graham Hall 

A safe and caring 
community 

 

Spend every 
pound wisely 

 To update Scrutiny 
Members and undertake 
any further work if 
necessary. 

Performance 
Management and 
Regulation/ 
Management of 
Change 
 
Regular Performance 
Reports to be 
Programmed 
 
 
End of Year 
Performance 
(including 
Compliments 
Comments and 
Complaints) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Year 
End/Quarter 4 – 
August 2021 
Q2 December 
2021 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Relevant AD 
 
 
 
 
Relevant AD 

A safe and caring 
community  
 
More businesses, 
more jobs 
 
More people 
caring for our 
environment 
 
A place designed 
to thrive 
 

Build strong 
communities. 
 
Spend every 
pound wisely 
 
Grow the 
economy 
 

Full Performance 
Management 
Framework suite 
of indicators.  

To receive quarterly 
monitoring reports and 
undertake any further 
detailed work into 
particular outcomes if 
necessary. 

Community Safety February 2022 
 
Last considered 
25 February 
2021 
 
 
 

Ian Thompson A safe and caring 
community 
 
A place designed 
to thrive 
 

Build strong 
communities 

 To update Scrutiny 
Members on Community 
Safety. 

P
age 68



 

3 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Topic 

 
Timescale 

 
Lead Officer/ 
Organisation 
Involved 

SCS Outcome 
Darlington 
Conditions 

Link to 
Performance 
Management 
Framework 
(metrics) 

Scrutiny’s Role 

Tree and Woodland 
Strategy 2021-2031 

Last considered 
27 August 2020 

Brian Graham More people 
caring for our 
environment 

 
A place designed 
to thrive 
 

Build strong 
communities 

 To give Scrutiny Members 
the opportunity to consider. 

Bank Top 
Masterplan 
 
 

Last considered 
22 October 
2020 
 
 

Dave 
Winstanley 

A place designed 
to thrive 
 

Spend every 
pound wisely 
 
Grow the 
economy 
 

 To influence the Bank Top 
Masterplan and ensure the 
best outcomes for 
Darlington’s residents and 
its economy. 

Rail Heritage –  
To include Head of 
Steam and 2025 
 
Review group also 
established 
 

Last considered 
22 October 
2020 
 
 
 

Ian Thompson 
 

More people 
caring about our 
environment 
 
More people 
active and 
involved 

Build strong 
communities. 
 
Grow the 
economy 

 To contribute to the 
development of 
‘Experience Darlington’ 
Strategy. 

Introduction to 
Environmental 
Health  

Members 
briefing – 19 
November 2020 
 
 

Mark Ladyman A place designed 
to thrive 
 
More people 
caring for our 
environment 
 
A safe and caring 
community 

Build strong 
communities 
 

ENV 002 
ENV 006 
ENV 009  
ENV 021 
ENV 022 
ENV 023 
REG 803 

To gain an understanding 
of Environmental Health 
and current and future 
challenges.  

P
age 69



 

4 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Topic 

 
Timescale 

 
Lead Officer/ 
Organisation 
Involved 

SCS Outcome 
Darlington 
Conditions 

Link to 
Performance 
Management 
Framework 
(metrics) 

Scrutiny’s Role 

Northgate Initiative  Last considered 
10 December 
2020 

Seth Pearson Children with the 
best start in life 
 
A safe and caring 
community 
 
More people 
caring for our 
environment 
 
More people 
active and 
involved 
 
More people 
healthy and 
independent 
 
A place designed 
to thrive 

Build Strong 
Communities 

 To update Scrutiny 
Members and undertake 
any further work if 
necessary. 

P
age 70



 

5 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Topic 

 
Timescale 

 
Lead Officer/ 
Organisation 
Involved 

SCS Outcome 
Darlington 
Conditions 

Link to 
Performance 
Management 
Framework 
(metrics) 

Scrutiny’s Role 

Back Lanes  
To include dog fouling 
and fly tipping 

Last considered 
10 December 
2020 

Ian Thompson A safe and caring 
community 
 
More people 
caring for our 
environment 
 
More people 
active and 
involved 
 
A place designed 
to thrive 

Build Strong 
Communities 

 To update Scrutiny 
Members and undertake 
any further work if 
necessary 

Grass Verge 
Management 
 

Last considered 
25 February 
2021 

Dave 
Winstanley 

More people 
caring for our 
environment 

Build strong 
communities 

 To gain an understanding 
on the management of 
grass verges. 
 

Local Transport 
Plan 

Last considered  
25 February 
2021 
 
 

Sue Dobson More businesses 
more jobs 
 
More people 
caring for our 
environment 
 
More people 
healthy and 
independent 
 
A place designed 
to thrive 
 

Build Strong 
Communities 
 
Grow the 
Economy 

 To give Scrutiny Members 
the opportunity to consider 
prior to Cabinet. 
 

P
age 71



 

6 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 
 

REVIEW GROUP 
 

Topic 

 
Timescale 
 

 
Lead Officer/ 
Organisation 
Involved 
 

SCS Outcome 
Darlington 
Conditions 

Link to PMF 
(metrics) 

Scrutiny’s Role 

School Streets 
Initiative 

Group met on 
16 December 
2020 and 14 
January 2021 
 
Report to 
Scrutiny on 25 
February 2021 

    To enable Scrutiny 
members to understand 
the work to date, input 
their experience and their 
perspectives to inform the 
work going forward. 

Management of 
Grass Verges 

Group met on 9 
April 2021 

    To assist development of 
a new operational policy 
in relation to the 
management of grass 
verges. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 72



 

7 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

JOINT COMMITTEE WORKING – HEALTH AND HOUSING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 

Topic 

 
Timescale 
 

 
Lead Officer/ 
Organisation 
Involved 
 

SCS Outcome 
Darlington 
Conditions 

Link to PMF 
(metrics) 

Scrutiny’s Role 

Drug and Alcohol 
Service Contract 

23 June 2021 
(Health and 
Housing 
Scrutiny 
Committee) 

Ken Ross A safe and 
caring 
community 
 
More people 
healthy and 
independent 

Build Strong 
Communities 
 
Spend every 
pound wisely 

 To update Scrutiny 
Members undertake any 
further work if necessary. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 73



 

8 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Performance Indicators 
 

DBC 
Number: 

Definition: 

CUL 037 Number of shows held at the Hippodrome 

CUL 038 Number of individual attendances at theatre shows 

CUL 065 Number of physical visits to the Library 

CUL 066 Number of book loans 

CUL 067 Number of ICT sessions at the library 

CUL 071 Number of visits to the Head of Steam 

CUL 078 % of ticket sales for the Hippodrome 

CUL 079 % of ticket sales for the Hullabaloo 

ENV 002 Number of Street Champions who are actively involved in litter picking a minimum of once per month 

ENV 006 Total number of fly-tips reported 

ENV 009  % household waste that is collected that is either reused, recycled or composted 

ENV 021 % of small fly tips removed within target time 

ENV 022 % of large fly tips removed within target time 

ENV 023 Number of prosecutions for fly-tipping 

ENV 024 Land Audit Management System - Litter Score 

REG 803 Trading Standards : Percentage of high risk inspections carried out 

TCP 101 Bus punctuality - percentage of non-frequent bus services running on time 

TCP 200 Percentage of principal roads where maintenance should be considered (A class) 

TCP 202 Percentage of non principal roads where maintenance should be considered (B and C class) 

TCP 203 Percentage of unclassified roads where maintenance should be considered 

TCP 600 Number of people killed or seriously injured in road traffic accidents 

P
age 74



 

9 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

TCP 601 Number of people slightly injured in road traffic accidents 

TCP 602 Number of children killed or seriously injured in road traffic accidents 

TCP 603 Number of children slightly injured in road traffic accidents 

TCP 900 Overall Public Satisfaction with Public Transport Theme (National Highways and Transport Survey) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 75



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

PLEASE RETURN TO DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
 

T:/Scrutiny/$kxqcjnjw.docx 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Appendix 2 

PROCESS FOR ADDING AN ITEM TO SCRUTINY COMMITTEE’S  
PREVIOUSLY APPROVED WORK PROGRAMME 

 

Member Completes Quad of 
Aims (Section 1) 

Completed Quad of Aims to 
Democratic Services 

Refer to Monitoring and 
Co-ordination Group for 

clarification of appropriate 
Scrutiny Committee and in cases 
of cross cutting issues if needed 

 

Scrutiny Committee decision 
about addition to Work 

Programme 

Forwarded to Director/AD 
 for views (Section 2) 

(NOTE – There is an expectation that the 
Officer will discuss the request with the 

Member)  

Criteria 
1. Information already provided/or 

will be provided to Member 
 

2. Extent of workload involved in 
meeting request 
 

3. Request linked to an ongoing 
Scrutiny Committee item of work 
and can be picked up as part of 
that work 
 

4. Subject to another Council 
process for enquiry or 
examination (such as Planning 
Committee or Licensing 
Committee) 
 

5. About an individual or entity that 
has a right of appeal 
 

6. Some other substantial reason 

Note  
 
Statutory Scrutiny Officer can liaise 
with Member AD/Director and Chair 
over how best any requests can be 
dealt with  

Advise Chair of relevant Scrutiny 
Committee of the Quad of Aims 

and the view of Officers 

Include on next Scrutiny 
Committee Agenda  
(new work requests) 

 

Page 77



QUAD OF AIMS (MEMBERS’ REQUEST FOR ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED BY SCRUTINY)   
 

 

SECTION 1 TO BE COMPLETED BY MEMBERS  
 
NOTE – This document should only be completed if there is a clearly defined and significant outcome from any potential further work.  This 
document should not be completed as a request for or understanding of information.   
 
 

REASON FOR REQUEST? 

 

RESOURCE (WHAT OFFICER SUPPORT WOULD YOU REQUIRE?) 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PROCESS (HOW CAN SCRUTINY ACHIEVE THE 
ANTICIPATED OUTCOME?) 

 

 HOW WILL THE OUTCOME MAKE A DIFFERENCE? 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Signed   Councillor ……………………………………………    Date ………………………………………………………. 
 

SECTION 2 TO BE COMPLETED BY DIRECTORS/ASSISTANT DIRECTORS 

P
age 78



 

PLEASE RETURN TO DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
 

T:/Scrutiny/$kxqcjnjw.docx 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

(NOTE – There is an expectation that Officers will discuss the request with the Member) 
 

1. (a)  Is the information available elsewhere?      Yes ……………….. No ……………….. 

If yes, please indicate where the information can be found (attach if possible and return with this document to 
Democratic Services) 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

(b)  Have you already provided the information to the Member or will you shortly be doing so? 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

 
2. If the request is included in the Scrutiny Committee work programme what are the likely workload implications for 

you/your staff? 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 

3. Can the request be included in an ongoing Scrutiny Committee item of work and picked up as part of that? 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 

4. Is there another Council process for enquiry or examination about the matter currently underway? 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 

5. Has the individual or entity some other right of appeal? 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 

6. Is there any substantial reason (other than the above) why you feel it should not be included on the work programme? 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

 

Criteria 
 

1. Information already 
provided/or will be 
provided to Member 
 

2. Extent of workload 
involved in meeting 
request 
 

3. Request linked to an 
ongoing Scrutiny 
Committee item of work 
and can be picked up as 
part of that work 
 

4. Subject to another 
Council process for 
enquiry or examination 
(such as Planning 
Committee or Licensing 
Committee) 
 

5. About an individual or 
entity that has a right of 
appeal 
 

6. Some other substantial 
reason 

 
Signed ……………………………………… Position …………………………………………………………….. Date ……………………… 

P
age 79



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

- 1 - 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Appendix 3 
 

FORWARD PLAN  
April to August 2021 

 
 
 
 

Title 
 

Decision Maker and Date 

Annual Procurement Plan 2021/22 Cabinet 13 Apr 2021 

Locomotion No 1 and Replica Cabinet 13 Apr 2021 

Proposed Waiting Restrictions George 
Stephenson Drive - Objections 

Cabinet 13 Apr 2021 

Release of Capital Allocation in the MTFP - 
Capitalised Repairs in Corporate Buildings 

Cabinet 13 Apr 2021 

Stronger Communities Fund Cabinet 13 Apr 2021 

Customer Engagement Strategy 2021/24 Cabinet 4 May 2021 

Children and Young People Scrutiny 
Committee Review - Effects of the 
Pandemic on Children and Young People 

Cabinet 4 May 2021 

Special Educational Needs and Disabilities  
(SEND) Capital Projects 

Cabinet 4 May 2021 

Partnership Working in Darlington Cabinet 1 Jun 2021 

Proposed Waiting Restrictions on 
Woodland Road, Outram Street and Duke 
Street 

Cabinet 1 Jun 2021 

School Term Dates 2022/23 Cabinet 1 Jun 2021 

Collection of Council Tax, Business Rates 
and Rent 2020-21 

Cabinet 6 Jul 2021 

Project Position Statement and Capital 
Programme Monitoring Outturn 2020/21 

Cabinet 6 Jul 2021 

Project Position Statement and Capital 
Programme Monitoring - Quarter One 

Cabinet 6 Jul 2021 

Representation on Other Bodies 2021/22 Cabinet 6 Jul 2021 

Revenue Budget Outturn 2020/21 Cabinet 6 Jul 2021 

Revenue Budget Monitoring - Quarter 1 Cabinet 6 Jul 2021 

Xentrall Shared Services Annual Report Cabinet 6 Jul 2021 

Complaints, Compliments and Comments 
Annual Reports 2019/20 

Cabinet 7 Sep 2021 

 
 

Page 81



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To approve the Minutes of the meeting of this Scrutiny held on 25 February 2021
	4 Indoor and Outdoor Markets
	Title Page
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11

	5 Darlington Libraries
	6 Darlington Hippodrome
	7 Work Programme
	Item No. 7 - Appendix 1
	Item No. 7 - Appendix 2
	Item No. 7 - Appendix 3




